
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
 none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. January 22, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Joshua Winstral is nominated for appointment to the Park Commission by Councilmember Jeff Hales. 
2. Philip Eastin is nominated for appointment to the Storm Water Commission by Councilmember Jeff 

Hales. 
3. Grace Fitter is nominated for appointment to the Arts and Letters Commission by Councilmember 

Bwayne Smotherson. 
 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 
K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 

1.  Boundary Adjustment  
2.  Heman Park Pool - Sprayground - Construction Contract 
3.  Police Department purchase of a 2024 Nissan Versa car 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1.  Conditional Use Permit (CUP-23-08) - Application to allow a Day Care Center in the “IC” Industrial 
Commercial District at 6757 Olive Boulevard.  

  
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 

1.  BILL  9536  -  AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 
TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "URBAN SPROUTS. 

  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, February 12, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  
 

1. Resolution 2024-02  Reimbursement for Capital Expenditures in Connection with the Renovation 
Project of Annex / Trinity 

 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
 none 
 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Posted February 9, 2024 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


January 22, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes       Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, January 22, 2024,
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (joined via Zoom at 6:34 p.m.) 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.; 
Director of Finance, Keith Cole, and Lucille and Lamar Wilkes of Twisted Cafe. 

C. 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Hearing no requests to amend, Councilmember Fuller moved to approve the Agenda as
presented, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

E. PROCLAMATIONS - (Acknowledgement)
None

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. January 8, 2024, Study Session Minutes; (Recreational Division Update), was moved by

Councilmember Smotherson, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein, and the motion
carried unanimously.

2. January 8, 2024, Meeting Minutes was moved by Councilmember Fuller, it was seconded by
Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

G. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Edward Deitzler is nominated for reappointment to the Board of Trustees Retirement Fund

(Pension) by Councilmember Steve McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay,
and the motion carried unanimously.

2. Tony Westbrooks is nominated for reappointment to the Board of Trustees Retirement Fund
(Pension) by Councilmember Steve McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein,
and the motion carried unanimously.

3. James Wilke is nominated for reappointment to the Park Commission by Councilmember
Steve McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion carried
unanimously.

H. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
None

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, January 22, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



 

January 22, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes       Page 2 of 4 
 

 
I. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:  
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note 
whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment 
will not be recorded in the official record. 
 

Mayor Crow acknowledged receipt of a written comment and noted that there were no verbal 
requests to speak on regular agenda items. 
 

J. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

K. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Liquor License – Twisted Cafe – 8109 Olive Blvd. 
 

Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:32 p.m. and after confirming that there were no 
requests to speak the hearing was closed at 6:32 p.m. 
 

L. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. Centennial Commons Gym Floor Repairs 
2. Termination of Easements for Tree Pits at 8614 - 8630 Olive 
3. Cardiac Heart Monitor Replacement 

  
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 1 through 3 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

M. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. Liquor License – Twisted Cafe – 8109 Olive Blvd. 

Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider a Liquor License Application for 
the Twisted Cafe, located at 8109 Olive Blvd.   
 

Mr. Cole stated this application is for approval to serve a variety of intoxicating liquors by the drink, 
seven days a week. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated typically Liquor License Applications are received from fully 
operational businesses.  But in this case, the application seems a little premature since the Cafe is 
not open for business.  Are there any plans to install a new sign or make any renovations to the 
exterior of this facility? 
 
Mr. Cole informed Councilmember Smotherson that the owner, Ms. Lucille Wilkes was in 
attendance.   
 
Lucille Wilkes, 8109 Olive Blvd., U City, MO 
Ms. Wilkes stated all of the interior renovations have been completed and the sign has been 
ordered.  However, since they do not own the building, she hopes that the landlord will make some 
exterior improvements, even though no promises have been made to do so. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated if there are no additional comments his preference would be to 
delay the approval of this license until the business is up and running.  

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

January 22, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes       Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Lamar Wilkes, 8109 Olive Blvd., U City, MO  
Mr. Wilkes stated that they tried applying for the City's Facade Improvement Program to enhance 
the physical appearance of the building but was informed that it was only available for existing 
businesses that had all of their permits and licenses on file.  He stated the owner lives out of town 
and all communications are being handled through a property manager.  And during those 
conversations, they were told that they could not make any physical improvements to the exterior 
without the City's approval.  So, while waiting for their applications to be approved, he power-
washed the building several times and completed all of the interior work.  Mr. Wilkes stated the only 
things left to do at this point are to install the sign and add new stripes to the parking lot.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked if the owners had prohibited them from doing any work on the 
exterior of this building?  Mr. Wilkes stated after the owner's death, the building was inherited by 
their 26-year-old daughter, who hired a company to manage the property that, frankly, does not 
seem to be interested in any concerns expressed by tenants.  Because now they've leased the rear 
of the building to a tax firm whose clients are utilizing all of the parking spots.  Councilmember 
Smotherson asked if a delay in approving this license would hinder their ability to get the business 
up and running?  Mr. Wilkes stated without the license all they have is a deli, so the inclusion of a 
bar will help them finance the business.   
 Councilmember Smotherson stated in its current state, the outer appearance of this building 
would not lead anyone to conclude that there is a viable business operating on the inside.  So, 
before the issuance of this license is it possible to install the sign and allow members of Council to 
see the interior renovations?  Mr. Wilkes stated they would prefer to make sure they have the 
license before paying for and installing the sign because they won't be able to sustain the business 
without the ability to serve liquor.  
 
Councilmember Clay asked Mr. Wilkes if he could give Council an estimate of when the business 
would be fully operational?  Mr. Wilkes stated if the Liquor License is approved tonight, they could 
be open in two weeks.  Councilmember Clay asked if Council could conduct a tour, the sign 
installed, and some degree of beautification on the exterior could be completed within that 
timeframe? Ms. Wilkes stated the problem with moving forward is that since occupying the building 
in July, they have spent a lot of money on interior renovations and rent. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked Ms. Wilkes if it would create an undue burden if Council 
revisited this application in two weeks to get a better understanding of her business?  Ms. Wilkes 
stated if the application is going to be approved, then she would be happy to wait two weeks. 
 
Mayor Crow stated with no pending motion on the floor, no further action is needed.  
 

N. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
1. BILL 9535 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTION 400.1260 OF THE 

UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE,   RELATING TO FENCE MATERIALS, BY ADDING 
PROVISIONS PROHIBITING TARP FENCES IN RESIDENTIAL AND PUBLIC ACTIVITY 
(“PA”) ZONING DISTRICTS.  Bill Number 9535 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

E - 1 - 3



 

January 22, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes       Page 4 of 4 
 

 
O. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
Resolutions 
None 

 
Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
    Introduced by Councilmember Smotherson 

1. BILL 9536 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION 
OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "URBAN SPROUTS."  Bill Number 9536 was 
read for the first time. 

 
P. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
Q. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - (continued if needed) 

R. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously.   
 

S. ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the Regular Council Meeting 
at 6:52 p.m. 
 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240212-01

Approval for the City Clerk to sign and seal a Boundary Adjustment Plat for recording at the 
St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development
Consent yes

City Manager recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

Section 405.580 of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance governs the administration of boundary adjustments. These plats allow adjustments to 
be made to lot lines of platted lots, essentially moving the property line between two lots. These plats do not create new lots. §405.580 
allows for these plats to be approved administratively. 

A boundary adjustment between 6908 Amherst Avenue and 6910 Amherst Avenue has been approved: 813 square-feet was added to 
6910 Amherst from 6908 Amherst. The plat needs to be recorded with St. Louis County, and the City Clerk’s signature and the City’s seal 
need to be affixed to the plat before it can be recorded. The City Clerk, however, cannot sign and seal the plat unless directed to do so by 
the City Council. As the plat was administratively approved by staff, we respectfully request approval for the City Clerk to sign and seal the 
boundary adjustment plat. 

Staff Memo

High Quality Growth

City Manager, Gregrory Rose February 12, 2024

K - 1 - 1



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Gregory Rose, City Manager 

FROM:  John Wagner, Ph.D., Director of Planning & Development 

DATE: February 12, 2024 

SUBJECT: Boundary Adjustment Plat – Signature and Seal 

This Memo is a request for the City Council to approve the City Clerk’s signature and the City’s 
seal on a Boundary Adjustment Plat so the plat can be recorded with the St. Louis County 
Recorder of Deeds.  

Section 405.580 of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance governs the administration of boundary 
adjustments. These plats allow adjustments to be made to lot lines of platted lots, essentially 
moving the property line between two lots. These plats do not create new lots. §405.580 allows 
for these plats to be approved administratively. 

A boundary adjustment between 6908 Amherst Avenue and 6910 Amherst Avenue has been 
approved: 813 square-feet was added to 6910 Amherst from 6908 Amherst. The plat needs to 
be recorded with St. Louis County, and the City Clerk’s signature and the City’s seal need to be 
affixed to the plat before it can be recorded. The City Clerk, however, cannot sign and seal the 
plat unless directed to do so by the City Council. As the plat was administratively approved by 
staff, we respectfully request approval for the City Clerk to sign and seal the boundary 
adjustment plat.  

Attachments: 
Four (4) invoices from Bio-One of STL 

Department of Planning and Development
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

K - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240212-02

Heman Park Pool - Sprayground - Construction Contract 
 
 
Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Parks & Recreation/All

Consent Yes

City Manager recommends approval of the Contract with Capri Pools and 
authorization to execute same as contained in Council's packet. 

Total project cost $715,000.00.  The City received a $575,000.00 grant for this project and 
will be responsible for the remaining $140,000.00.

$140,000.00

The spraygound at Heman Park Pool will provide recreational opportunities for many ages 
and capabilities.

Project had been approved for quite some time and this is the final document to be 
approved.

Contract

Community Quality of Life Amenities 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose February 12, 2024

K - 2 - 1



SPLASH SPRAYGROUND SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the day of ________________________, 2024 by 
and between The City of University City, MISSOURI (here in after called the CITY) and 
Capri Pools, Inc , a   with offices at 

(herein after called the 
CONTRACTOR), 

The CITY has selected CONTRACTOR to perform professional services for the planning, 
engineering analysis, design, and development of plans and specifications, and the 
construction of a Splash Sprayground at the Heman Park Pool. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The CITY and CONTRACTOR for the considerations hereinafter set 
forth, 
Agree as follows: 

ARTICLE1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The services covered by this CONTRACT shall Include furnishing the professional, technical, 
and other personnel necessary for the planning and design and Construction (the 
"PROJECT"). All design and planning drawings must be completed using drawing protocols 
and standards by the City of University City. All deliverables and agreed upon project 
development information, shall be submitted in electronic format for continued use by the 
City of University City. 

CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all those services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto, 
and made a part hereof, in accordance with the terms and conditions stated therein, (such 
services being hereinafter referred to as the "WORK"). 

ARTICLE 2 - STANDARDS AND PERMITS 

Design criteria and project planning will be in accordance with the standards of the CITY, St. 
Louis County Department of Health, and the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District (MSD). 
Permits for this PROJECT will be required from the City and may be required by MSD, and 
possibly other agencies. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for applying for and 
acquiring all permits that are required to construct the PROJECT, except for MSD for which 
the CONTRACTOR shall only be responsible for obtaining plan approval. The 
CONTRACTOR shall prepare all documents required to apply for the required permits and 
approvals and shall represent the CITY at all meetings in which the various agencies request 
the CITY'S attendance. The CONTRACTOR shall provide any additional information 
requested by the agencies and shall revise the permit applications and/or plans, as required by 
the agencies, in order for the agencies to properly evaluate the permit applications. 

ARTICLE 3 - FEES AND PAYMENT 
1. For the services described in Exhibit A- Scope of Services, the CITY will pay, and the

CONTRACTOR will accept as full compensation, actual costs of services and supplies
based upon the rates provided in the Scope of Services, the total amount not to exceed
Seven Hundred Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($715.000.00).

2. Progress payments for services rendered shall be made monthly upon submission of a
detailed invoice, in form reasonably satisfactory to the City Representative for work
performed during the previous month. The CITY will make progress payments not later
than forty days after receipt of acceptable invoices with appropriate documentation.

K - 2 - 2



 
ARTICLE 4 - SUBCONTRACTING 

Except as listed on Exhibit A attached hereto, no part of the services to be performed by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder shall be subcontracted without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The subcontracting of the work shall in no way relieve the CONTRACTOR of 
CONTRACTOR'S primary responsibility for the quality and performance of the work. 

CONTRACTOR shall assure that any subcontractor, as provided for herein, is in full 
compliance with all laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, provisions of this CONTRACT, and, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, compliance with all federal laws applicable 
to contracts of this type. 

 
ARTICLE 5 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, and 
the coordination of designs, drawings, specifications, and other services furnished under this 
CONTRACT. The CONTRACTOR shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise 
any errors or deficiencies in his designs, drawings, specifications, and other services. 

All plans, specifications and other documents shall be endorsed by the CONTRACTOR and 
shall reflect the name and seal of the Professional Engineer endorsing the work. 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall defend suits or claims for infringement of any copyright or patent 
rights arising out of use or adoption of any design, drawings or specifications furnished by 
him, and shall indemnify the CITY or other agency of government from loss or damage on 
account thereof so long as the documents furnished by the CONTRACTOR are being used for 
their original intended purpose. 

Neither the CITY'S review, approval, acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services 
required under this CONTRACT shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under 
this CONTRACT or any cause of action arising out of the performance of this CONTRACT, 
and the CONTRACTOR shall be and remain liable to the CITY in accordance with applicable 
CITY codes and Ordinances and State and Federal laws for all damages to the CITY caused 
by the CONTRACTOR'S negligent performance of any of the services furnished under this 
CONTRACT. 

 
ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION 

The services of the CONTRACTOR shall commence upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed 
from the CITY, which Notice shall be in writing, and the CONTRACTOR shall within ten 
(10) days proceed with the schedule as set forth in Exhibit A. 

The times specified herein may be extended by written order of the City Representative in the 
event of unavoidable delay. The CONTRACTOR may submit to City Representative timely 
requests for extension of time before plans are due, citing reasons why the delay involved is 
unavoidable. 

 
 

ARTICLE 7 - INFORMATION BY THE CITY 

The CITY will provide upon request available information of record to the CONTRACTOR. 
The CITY will provide representatives to attend meetings with interested property owners and 

K - 2 - 3



public utilities, upon request of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

The CONTRACTOR and its Subconsultants shall procure and maintain during the life of this 
CONTRACT insurance against claims which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the CONTRACTOR, his agents, representatives, 
employees or subcontractors of the types and minimum amounts as follows: 

1. Workers' Compensation in full compliance with statutory requirements of Federal and 
State of Missouri law and Employers' Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000. 

 
2.  Comprehensive General Liability and Bodily Injury  

Including Death: $460,000 each person 
 $3,070,000 each occurrence  
Property Damage: $3,070,000 each occurrence 

  $3,070,000 each occurrence 
 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability, Bodily Injury 
Including Death: $460,000 each person 
 $3,070,000 each occurrence  
Property Damage: $3,070,000 each occurrence 
 

4. Owner's Protective Bodily Injury 
Including Death: $460,000 each person 
 $3,070,000 each occurrence  
Property Damage: $3,070,000 each occurrence 

  $3,070,000 each occurrence 
 

An umbrella or excess liability policy may be used to attain the shown Worker's Compensation 
and Employers' Liability limits. 

The Comprehensive General Liability policy shall be endorsed to cover the liability assumed 
by the CONTRACTOR hereunder. To the extent permitted by law, the CONTRACTOR shall 
name the CITY as an additional insured on all insurance policies required by the CONTRACT. 
Said insurance shall be written by a company or companies licensed to do business in the State 
of Missouri. 
Certificates evidencing such insurance shall be furnished the CITY prior to CONTRACTOR 
commencing the work. The insurance evidenced by the certificate shall indicate that it will not 
be canceled or altered, except that it may be canceled or altered upon twenty days prior written 
notice thereof to the CITY. The certificate(s) must state the CITY as an additional insured on 
those policies applicable. The cost of such insurance shall be included in the CONTRACTOR'S 
basic service fee. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At 
the option of the CITY, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-
insured retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, and employees; or the 
CONTRACTOR shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administrative and defense expenses. 

 
ARTICLE 9 - INDEMNIFICATION 

The CONTRACTOR and his SUBCONTRACTORS shall indemnify and save harmless the CITY 
K - 2 - 4



against injury, loss or damage and costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) 
suffered or incurred by the CITY for personal injuries including death, or property damages 
sustained, caused by negligent or willful acts, errors or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, any 
subcontractors of CONTRACTOR their respective agents, employees or contractors arising out 
of the WORK of this CONTRACT. 

 
ARTICLE 10 - TERMINATION 

The CITY may terminate this CONTRACT at any time, with or without cause, effective upon 
delivery of Notice thereof to the CONSULTANT. 

Should the CONTRACT be so terminated, all drawings and documents in connection with the 
project shall become the property of the CITY who shall, in that event, make reasonable 
allowance for expenses incurred and services satisfactorily performed by the CONTRACTOR 
to the date of termination. The CITY shall indemnify CONTRACTOR for any use or re-use of 
plans by persons with CITY's express approval. 

ARTICLE 11 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS  

All original documents, studies, graphic material, drawings, photographs, or plans, including 
those on electronic media, (DOCUMENTS) prepared by the CONTRACTOR, pertaining to the 
design of the project, shall be deemed the property of the CITY and shall be delivered to the 
CITY at the time of termination of this contract or presentation of the CONTRACTOR'S final 
invoice for payment pursuant to ARTICLE 3 and the CITY shall be entitled to physical 
possession of said DOCUMENTS whether complete or in progress. 

 

 
ARTICLE 12 - DECISIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

The City Representative will determine the acceptability of work performed under this 
CONTRACT and will decide all questions which may arise relative to the proper performance 
of this CONTRACT, and his decision shall be final and conclusive. 

 
ARTICLE 13 - EQUAL OPPORTUNITYCLAUSE 

During the performance of this CONTRACT, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 
 
The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it after award and prior to completion of 
the CONTRACT, will not discriminate on the ground of race, color, religion, sex, national origin or 
disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors. The CONTRACTOR will comply with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. In all solicitations either by competitive 
bidding or negotiations made by the CONTRACTOR for work to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurement of materials or equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be 
notified of the CONTRACTOR 'S obligations under this CONTRACT and the regulations relative to 
non-discrimination on the ground of color, race, religion, sex, national origin, or disability. 

The CONTRACTOR will take action to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are 
treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or 
disability. 

 
Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to 
post notices in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitation, or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 
K - 2 - 5



of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive • consideration for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or disability. 

The CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of State and Federal laws and regulations governing 
the regulations of Equal Employment Opportunity and Non-Discrimination. 

 
ARTICLE 14 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree that this CONTRACT and all contracts entered under the 
provisions of this CONTRACT shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and 
assigns. 

 
ARTICLE 15 - CHANGES 

The CITY may make changes within the general scope of services of the CONTRACT. However, no 
changes will be made in the Scope of Service, the Time of Performance, the fees to be paid or other 
provisions which may affect the cost of the project without prior written order of the CITY and the 
execution of a suitable Amendment to this CONTRACT. Neither the CITY staff nor the 
CONTRACTOR may authorize any substantive change in this CONTRACT by oral or other 
directions intended to substitute for a written contract Amendment. 

 
This CONTRACT may be amended or supplemented only by an instrument in writing executed 
by the parties hereto. 

 
ARTICLE 16 - CITY REPRESENTATIVE 

For purposes of this CONTRACT, the City Representative will be the ______________  
of the CITY. The City Manager, in his sole discretion, may designate another City 
Representative from time to time. In such event, CONTRACTOR shall be notified by the CITY, 
in writing. 

 
ARTICLE 17 - NOTICE 

Any notice required or permitted to be delivered under this CONTRACT shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been delivered on the earliest to occur of (a) actual receipt; or (b) three 
business days after having been deposited with the U.S. Postal Service, postage prepaid, 
certified mail, return receipt requested; or (c) one business day after having been deposited with 
a reputable overnight express mail service that provides tracking and proof of receipt of items 
mailed. All notices shall be addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth below: 

 
 
If to CONTRACTOR: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If to CITY:  City of University City  

6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, MO 63130  

 
 Attn.: _____________________

K - 2 - 6



 
 

 
ARTICLE 18 - CHOICE OF LAW 

This CONTRACT, and all work and other activities governed hereby shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of Missouri. 

 
ARTICLE 19 - CONFLICTS 

 
In the event of any conflict or discrepancy between the terms of this CONTRACT and those set 
forth in Exhibit A hereto, it is expressly understood and agreed that the terms and provisions of 
this CONTRACT shall govern. 

 
ARTICLE 20 - SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this CONTRACT is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under 
present or future laws, such provision shall be fully severable. In such event, this CONTRACT 
shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never 
comprised a part of this CONTRACT and the remaining provisions of this CONTRACT shall 
remain in full force and effect, and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
provision. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement: 

 

 
(SEAL) 

 
 
 

 
Attest: 

 
Title:     

By (signature):     

Contractor (print):   _ 

Date:   

K - 2 - 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
 
 

Attest:     

By:     
  City Clerk   

Date:     

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY  

By:     
  City Manager   

Date: 
   

 

K - 2 - 8



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240212-03

Police Department purchase of a 2024 Nissan Versa car

Chief Larry Hampton Police Department
Consent No

City Managers recommends approval.

UCPD purchase for Code Compliance Officer use. Funding was allocated and approved for 
F.Y. '24 in C.I.P. this purchase. 

$20.055 #30-20-90-8200

CIP Vehicles & Equip #30-20-90-8200 CIP Vehicles & Equip

The Police Department is requesting the purchase of one 2024 Nissan Versa for use by the 
Code Compliance Officer(s) going forward.   

Auto Centers Nissan quoted the department $19,555 to purchase one Nissan Versa. There 
will be an additional charge of $500 dollars to equip this vehicle with decals and the 
installation of those decals. This totals $20,555 for the entire purchase.

Vehicle and Equipment quotes attached 

Public Safety
Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 02/12/2024

K - 3 - 1



K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



K - 3 - 4



L - 1 - 1



L - 1 - 2



L - 1 - 3



L - 1 - 4



L - 1 - 5



L - 1 - 6



L - 1 - 7



L - 1 - 8



L - 1 - 9



L - 1 - 10



L - 1 - 11



L - 1 - 12



L - 1 - 13



L - 1 - 14



L - 1 - 15



L - 1 - 16



L - 1 - 17



L - 1 - 18



L - 1 - 19



L - 1 - 20



L - 1 - 21



L - 1 - 22



L - 1 - 23



L - 1 - 24



L - 1 - 25



L - 1 - 26



L - 1 - 27



L - 1 - 28



L - 1 - 29



L - 1 - 30



L - 1 - 31



L - 1 - 32



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20240211-01

SUB 23-03 – Application for a Application for a Major Subdivision - Consolidation Plat for 
6757, 6767, 6771 and 6773 Olive Boulevard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

Unfinished Business - Bill 9536 yes

City Manager concurs with the Plan Commission and recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

Staff has determined that the Final Plat meets all requirements of Sections 405.165 and 
405.380 of the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations. The Plan Commission 
unanimously approved the plat at its December 6, 2023 meeting.

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the December 6, 2023 
Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, and a Draft Ordinance. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose February 11, 2024

M - 1 - 1



December 6, 2023 

Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Major Subdivision – Record Plat (SUB 23-03) 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the fifth floor 
City Council Chambers at City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard), the Plan Commission 
considered the application of 6757 Olive Holdings for Final Plat Approval of a proposed 
major subdivision for 6757, 6767, 6771 and 6773 Olive Boulevard.    

By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said major 
subdivision. 

Sincerely, 

Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Plan Commission
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 

M - 1 - 2



Department of Community Development
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  

STAFF REPORT 
City Council 

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2024 

FILE NUMBER: SUB 23-03 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: 3 

Location: 6757, 6767, 6771 and 6773 Olive Boulevard 
Applicant:  6757 Olive Holdings 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation 
Existing Zoning: “IC” Industrial Commercial 
Proposed Zoning:  Same – no change 
Existing Land Use:  Daycare, vacant buildings 
Proposed Land Use: Daycare 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:  “SR” – Single-family Residential 
East:  “IC” Industrial Commercial 
South:  “IC” Industrial Commercial 
West:  “GC” General Commercial 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Plat Application
B. Preliminary/ Consolidation Plat

Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property currently consists of four (4) properties: 

1. 6757 Olive Boulevard (0.77 acres);
2. 6767 Olive Boulevard (0.21 acres);
3. 6771 Olive Boulevard (0.11 acres); and
4. 6773 Olive Boulevard (0.37 acres). M - 1 - 3



The Applicant has requested the Consolidation Plat together with a Conditional Use 
Permit for the Urban Sprouts Child Development Center (The Center), also on the 
agenda, CUP 23-08. The Center is located at 6757 Olive Boulevard, the most eastern of 
these four (4) parcels. The Center is proposing to expand to encompass the three lots 
immediately to the east (6767, 6771 and 6773 Olive Boulevard) to Ferguson Avenue. 
The new lot would be 1.46 acres in size. See Figure 1. 

Figure 1. Location of the four (4) parcels to be consolidated. 

Staff Review 
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 
405.165 of the Subdivision regulations.  

Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision 
and Land Development Regulations.     

Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Major 
Subdivision. 

Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission 
voted unanimously to approve SUB 23-03. 

M - 1 - 4



INTRODUCED BY:________________ DATE:__________ 

BILL NO.:  9536  ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A TRACT OF 
LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "URBAN SPROUTS." 

    WHEREAS, an application was submitted by 6757 Olive Holdings for the approval of a final 
subdivision plat of a tract of land at 6757, 6767, 6771 and 6773 Olive Boulevard to be known as "Urban 
Sprouts"; and  

      WHEREAS, at its meeting on December 6, 2023, the University City Plan Commission reviewed the 
final plat for the major subdivision and determined that the final plat is in substantial compliance with the 
requirements of the University City Municipal Code and recommended to the City Council approval of the 
final plat; and 

      WHEREAS, the final plat for the major subdivision application, including all required documents 
submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 

      NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

      Section 1.    Attached, marked "Exhibit A", and made a part hereof is a final subdivision of a tract of 
land to be known as "Urban Sprouts." 

      Section 2.    It is hereby found and determined that the final plat for the major subdivision is in full 
compliance with the University City Municipal Code, including Sections 405.380 and 405.390. Accordingly, 
the final plat for the major subdivision marked "Exhibit A" is hereby approved. 

      Section 3.    The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the final plat for the major subdivision 
the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of the City of University City. 

  Section 4.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by 
law. 

        PASSED and ADOPTED this 12th day February, 2024. 

________________________________ 
            MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 

Exhibit A 

M - 1 - 5



Exhibit A 

M - 1 - 6



 

Exhibit A 

M - 1 - 7



 

Exhibit A 

M - 1 - 8



 

Exhibit A 

M - 1 - 9



 

M - 1 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20230212-01

Resolution - Reimbursement for Capital Expenditures in Connection with the Renovation 
Project of Annex / Trinity 

Keith Cole Finance / All
New Business - Resolution 2024-02 Yes

The City Manager recommends City Council to approve the resolution requesting the City 
reimburse itself for capital expenditures in connection with the renovation of the Annex / 
Trinity project.

Maximum net proceeds of obligations will be $26,000,000.

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

The City has incurred capital expenditures in connection with renovating, improving, and 
furnishing its City Hall Annex and Trinity building. The renovation is to provide a permanent 
location for police operations and a permanent location for court operations. 

The City may reimburse all capital expenditures paid beginning 60 days before the reimbursement resolution is adopted.  For example, if 
the reimbursement resolution is adopted on February 12, 2024, the City may reimburse itself for any costs paid on and after December 14, 
2023. In addition, the Treasury Regulations allow the City to reimburse itself for the following costs, even if paid more than 60 days before 
adoption of the reimbursement resolution: (1) expenditures not exceeding the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the bond proceeds and (2) 
“preliminary expenditures,” not exceeding 20% of the bond proceeds, including architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing and similar 
costs.  “Preliminary expenditures” do not include site preparation and similar costs associated with construction of the project. The bond 
proceeds must be allocated to reimburse the original expenditure within 18 months after the later of (1) the date the original expenditure 
was paid or (2) the date the project was placed in service, but in no event more than three years after the original expenditure was paid.  
So, if bonds were issued on July 1, 2024, then expenditures could not be reimbursed that were paid before July 1, 2021.

1. Resolution 2024-02

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose February 12, 2024

N - 1 - 1 



RESOLUTION 2024 - 02 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE INTENT OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, TO REIMBURSE ITSELF FOR CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURES IN CONNECTION WITH THE RENOVATION OF ITS 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City of University City, Missouri (the “City”), has incurred capital expenditures in 
connection with renovating, improving, furnishing and equipping its municipal complex, including but not 
limited to improvements to the City Hall to improve building accessibility and ensure water tightness, 
improvements to the City Hall Annex to provide a permanent location for police operations, and 
improvements to the Trinity Building to provide a safe and secure location for municipal court activities 
and Council meetings (collectively, the “Project”) and may incur additional capital expenditures in 
connection with the Project on and after the date hereof.  The City intends to reimburse itself for such 
expenditures with the proceeds of bonds or other obligations to be issued by the City (the “Obligations”). 
The maximum net proceeds of Obligations expected to be issued for the Project will be $26,000,000. 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

PASSED and RESOLVED THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 

Terry Crow, MAYOR 

(Seal) 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

N - 1 - 2 


	Resolutions
	K2 All- Sprayground.pdf
	COPY
	Capri Pools Contract.pdf
	ARTICLE1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES
	ARTICLE 2 - STANDARDS AND PERMITS
	ARTICLE 3 - FEES AND PAYMENT
	ARTICLE 4 - SUBCONTRACTING
	ARTICLE 5 - RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR
	ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION
	ARTICLE 7 - INFORMATION BY THE CITY
	ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	ARTICLE 9 - INDEMNIFICATION
	ARTICLE 10 - TERMINATION
	ARTICLE 12 - DECISIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
	ARTICLE 13 - EQUAL OPPORTUNITYCLAUSE
	ARTICLE 16 - CITY REPRESENTATIVE
	ARTICLE 17 - NOTICE
	ARTICLE 18 - CHOICE OF LAW
	ARTICLE 19 - CONFLICTS
	ARTICLE 20 - SEVERABILITY


	M1 All - SUB 23-03 (Urban Sprouts).pdf
	M1 Cover- SUB 23-03 (Urban Sprouts).pdf
	COPY


	K1 All - BAP Sign and Seal.pdf
	K1 Cover. - BAP Sign and Seal.pdf
	COPY


	N1 - All - Reimbursement Resolution 2024-02.pdf
	N1 - Cover - Reimbursement Resolution 2024-02.pdf
	COPY


	K3 - All  UCPD Vehicle - CODE COMPLIANCE CAR 02.12.2024 Council Meeting  R.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page




